
Democratic Services Section Website
3rd Floor Deanery Wing
City Hall PO Box 3399
College Green,
Bristol BS1 9NE

www.bristol.gov.uk

THE DOWNS COMMITTEE
Clifton and Durdham Downs (Bristol) Act 1861

Reply to Oliver Harrison

To : Members of the
Downs Committee

Telephone 
E-mail oliver.harrison@bristol.gov.uk
Date Friday, 15 January 2021

The Lord Mayor and 6 City Councillors
The Rt. Hon. The Lord Mayor Councillor Jos Clark
Councillor Barry Clark Councillor Kye Dudd
Councillor Christopher Davies Councillor Paul Goggin
Councillor Paula O'Rourke Councillor Steve Smith

The Master and 6 Merchant Venturers
Gillian Camm (Vice-Chair) Jonathon Baker
Simon Cooper
David Powell
Mike Bothamley

Peter Rilett
David Freed

Dear Member,

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Downs Committee to be held at 2.00 pm 
on Monday, 25th January, 2021 

The agenda for the meeting is set out overleaf and the supporting documents are 
attached.

Yours sincerely,

OH

Oliver Harrison
Agenda

1. Welcome, Introductions and Safety Information  

2. Apologies for absence  

Public Document Pack



3. Declarations of interest  

To note and Declarations of Interest raised by Councillors.

4. Minutes of last meeting (Pages 4 - 8) 

5. Action Tracker (Page 9) 

To note the Action tracker and any matters arising.

6. Events and Finance Sub-Group Summary (Pages 10 - 11) 

To note the proceedings of the Events and Finance Sub-Committee and any 
matters arising. 

7. Public Forum  

To consider items of Public Forum sent to the Downs Committee. Interested 
parties can submit a written statement of approximately one side A4 to the Downs 
Committee by sending it to Democratic Services by no later than 12pm on Friday 
22 January.

8. Downs Management Report (Ben Skuse) (Page 12) 

9. Events Report (Amanda Sharpe)  

Report to follow

10. Finance Update (Kevin Jay) (Page 13) 

11. Wildflower Beds on Christchurch Green (Pages 14 - 15) 

12. Any Other Business  

13. Date of Next Meeting  

The next meeting is scheduled to be held remotely at 22 March 2021.

Oliver Harrison, Democratic Services Officer
Email: oliver.harrison@bristol.gov.uk or democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk
Phone: 

mailto:democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk




Minutes of the Downs Committee

16 November 2020 at 2.00 pm

Members Present:-
Councillors: Councillor Jos Clark (Chair), Councillor Barry Clark, Councillor Kye Dudd, Councillor 
Christopher Davies, Councillor Paul Goggin, Councillor Paula O'Rourke, Councillor Steve Smith, Gillian 
Camm (Vice-Chair), Jonathon Baker, Mike Bothamley, David Freed, David Powell and Peter Rilett

Officers in Attendance:-
Oliver Harrison, Ben Skuse, Kevin Jay, Amanda Sharpe and Mark Sperduty (Area Manager, Transport)

1. Welcome and Introductions

2. Apologies for absence

Apologies were received from Simon Cooper (MV).

3. Membership for 2020/21 (Report of the Clerk to the Committee)

The Downs Committee Membership for 2020/21 was NOTED. It was confirmed that Councillor Paul 
Goggin (Lab) is replacing Councillor Don Alexander. 

4. Chairing Arrangements (Report of the Clerk to the Committee)

The appointment of Gillian Camm as Master of the Merchant Venturers and Vice-Chair for Downs 
Committee 2020/21 was NOTED.

5. Retiring Members (Report of the Clerk to the Committee)

RESOLVED The Downs Committee gave a vote of thanks to retiring members of the committee.

ACTION OH to send letter to retiring members thanking them for their past services to Downs Committee.

6. Dates and Times of Future Meetings - 2021 (Report of the Clerk to the Committee)

RESOLVED the Downs Committee will meet on the dates indicated in this report.

Page 4

Agenda Item 4



democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

7. Delegations (Report of the Clerk to the Committee)

RESOLVED Events and Finance Sub-Group is re-established. It was NOTED that David Powell and Cllr Paul 
Goggin are the replacement members on this sub-group. The use of Task and Finish Groups is agreed.

8. Action Tracker

The action tracker was NOTED. 

ACTION OH update action tracker for next committee meeting. 

9. Minutes of last meeting held on Monday 21st September 2021

RESOLVED the minutes of the previous meeting 21 September 2020 were agreed as a correct record.

10.Summary of the Events and Finance Sub-Group held on 28th October 2020

The Events and Finance Sub-Group summary report was NOTED.

11.Declarations of interest

Cllr Kye Dudd declared an interest as a member of the Downs Football League.

12.Public Forum

FODAG – Update Report
Tim Parnell – Vehicle Dwellers
Giles Drewett – Vehicle Dwellers
Stephen Carroll – Vehicle Dwellers
Chris Hawkins (S) – Vehicle Dwellers
Mike Massey – Vehicle Dwellers
Sharon Baker – Vehicle Dwellers
Jon Craton – Vehicle Dwellers
Pete Vallance – Vehicle Dwellers
Bristol Vehicles for Change – Vehicle Dwellers

13.Downs Maintenance Report (Ben Skuse)

Ben Skuse introduced the report and highlighted the following points:

Page 5



democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

 This has been a period of very high rainfall, which causes considerable issues for ground 
management as vehicles are at risk of getting stuck in mud.

 The report is slightly outdated with regards to football, which is on hold during the second 
lockdown. 

 We are currently losing grassland to scrub, so this will need to be mowed more intensively in 
future.  

 4 new bins and 3 new memorial benches have been bought. 
 Evergreen oak is spreading strongly, which is an invasive species. It is being cut down and used as 

a food supply by Bristol Zoo. 
 The circus has finished its extended run and due to excellent management of the ground 

conditions there is little damage. 
 Extension of events into the Watertower Site will require more intensive management.

Discussion Notes:
 The Evergreen Oaks were planted on the Downs in Victorian times for aesthetic purposes, but 

they are an invasive species. They are very large, spread fast and present a damage risk to clifftop 
areas. The leaf drops are acidic and nothing can grow under them when they drop. They can be 
identified by their more oval leaves and their retention of these leaves during winter. 

The Downs Maintenance Report was NOTED.

14.Events Report (Amanda Sharpe)

Amanda Sharpe introduced the report and highlighted the following points:
 Since the last committee, 2 events have been running: Breaking Bread and Circus Montini. 
 Breaking bread had a successful 3 month run and decided to close in November due to worsening 

weather conditions. The lockdown would have resulted in closure anyway. BB provided 
employment for the hard pressed hospitality sector so the event has been very positive. 

 The circus had their run extended due to the cancellation of their Bath site. The circus was run 
successfully despite operating on a reduced capacity due to Covid restrictions.

 A detailed schedule of proposed events is due to be agreed at the Events and Finance sub-group. 

Discussion Notes:
 The details of potential future restrictions on events are unknown. All event applications being 

considered are those that can be operated in a Covid secure manner. Organisations are asked to 
account for social distancing and increased hygiene. All events must be safety compliant and pass 
BCC, public health and emergency services measures.

The Events Report was NOTED. 

15.Finance Update (Kevin Jay)

Page 6



democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

Kevin Jay introduced the report and highlighted the following points:

This is the current financial outturn to end October. There is a substantial deficit in 20/21 caused by Covid 
disruption to events and hospitality and the estimated costs for judicial review. The deficit can be covered 
by previous year underspends. 

Discussion notes:
 It was confirmed that the overspend figures have been caused by several different drivers, but the 

most significant is legal fees related to the judicial review. 

16.Vehicle Dwellers on the Downs (Mark Sperduty)

Mark Sperduty introduced the report and highlighted the following points:
 This is a discussion paper to identify possible options to address concerns regarding vehicle 

dwellers. It makes no recommendations, but about what is possible on highway terms. 
 Single yellow lines and parking restrictions were installed following previous consultations 

between residents and visitors. Actions taken will have an impact on certain groups.

Discussion notes:
 Concerns about vehicle dwelling have been raised by local residents in the public forum for this 

meeting and via local councillors. 
 Any proposed action would need to be examined in detail as it would require funding. The cabinet 

member for transport and the Mayor’s office would need to be involved in discussions. Any 
creation of new byelaws would need dedicated legal advice. Any enforcement would also require 
funding.

 As vehicle dwellers live on the highway they are technically under the jurisdiction of the council 
highways department rather than Downs Committee. The committee would need to request that 
highways act on its behalf. 

 The original restrictions place on these roads needed large amount of consultation and 
negotiations. There will be a similar requirement for vehicle dwellers.

RESOLVED (unanimous vote FOR) That a Task and Finish group be created for the vehicle dweller issue, 
organised along similar lines to the parking task and finish group. 

17.Christchurch Green Wildflower Beds

Councillor Paula O’Rourke highlighted the following points:
 Local residents have requested more wildflower meadow areas, with an associated reduction in 

short mown grassland. 
 This has been examined with BCC parks officers. The proposal is to have three swathes of natural 

grasses on Christchurch Green. There has been a site visit, with BB advising on ecology and best 
location (e.g. to avoid seeds going into the gorge). 

Page 7



democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

 The ask is for seed to be purchased and sown, harvested and replanted as part of a community 
project using hand tools. 

Discussion Notes:
 This site is next to Avon Gorge so we are being careful about any species potentially getting into 

the gorge. Native species mix, with only wildflowers and no grasses, suitable for limestone soil.
 Concerns were raised over the height of grass and its position near the highway. Highways should 

be consulted to ensure that it does not block sightlines. 
 The cost for seed and planting is estimated at £200. POR has a community fund of £500 for the 

meadow and information boards. It is not clear whether this fund is for the meadow in general or 
just the boards.   

 The area is to be maintained by a team of volunteers to remove any ongoing cost element to the 
project, however there are no formal proposals as yet.

 BS confirmed that there was no significant ongoing cost apart from the initial planting and that 
BCC parks could cut the area if required.  

 Concerns were raised over safety issues of volunteers using hand tools to cut the grasses. 
However, any volunteer cutters would be supervised properly and this has been done before with 
appropriate risk assessments. 

 It was confirmed that this seeding could be done in Spring 2021.

RESOLVED a more detailed report with relevant financial data should be presented at the January Downs 
Committee Meeting. 

ACTION POR BS and BB to draft Christchurch Green Wildflower Bed report for next meeting. 

18.Any Other Business

19.Date of Next Meeting

The next meeting of the Downs Committee is Monday 25 January 2021.

20.Exempt Item: Bridge Road Toilet Block

RESOLVED (unanimous vote FOR) the recommendations are approved as set out in the report. 

Meeting ended at 16:00

CHAIR  __________________

Page 8



ACTION TRACKER – DOWNS COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting Item and Decision Person 
Taking 
Action

Deadline for 
Completion

Date Action 
Taken

29/06/20 A4018 Project – will need to 
return to committee

James 
Coleman

Awaiting date 
estimate from 
Ian Maggs in 
BCC transport.

03/11/20 Retiring Members Oliver 
Harrison

By 25 January 2021 
meeting.

All completed 
by 5 Jan.

03/11/20 Vehicle Dwellers – Task and 
Finish Group to be created

Oliver 
Harrison

03/11/20 Christchurch Green Wildflower 
Beds – updated report required 
with cost details

Paula 
O’Rourke & 
Becky 
Belfin

By 25 January 2021 
meeting.

Report 
submitted 4 
Jan.

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



Downs Committee
Summary of Events & Finance Sub Group Meeting

13 January 2021

Members:
Gillian Camm (Master and Chair)
MV Jonathon Baker
MV David Powell
MV Peter Rilett 
Councillor Barry Clark
Councillor Paula O’Rourke
Councillor Steve Smith
Councillor Paul Goggin

Bristol City Council Officers:
Oliver Harrison – Democratic Services
Jon James – Head of Parks
Kevin Jay – Finance
Amanda Sharpe – Events Officer
Ben Skuse – Grounds Supervisor

1. Minutes of Previous Meeting

Amendments: p.3 make it clear the arrangement for Breaking Bread is for one year only. p.4 
use the term ‘disadvantaged’ rather than ‘deprived’.

2. Events Update

 Certain events scheduled for earlier in the spring are now unlikely to go ahead due to 
lockdown and Covid restrictions so will need cancelling or rescheduling. 

 Other events scheduled are likely to require format changes to be Covid compliant. 
 Some event organisers are struggling financially due to Covid impact so will require a 

sensible financial negotiation and bond agreements with Downs Committee. AS, JB 
and BC are leading this work.

 We expect events to demonstrate compliance with Covid restrictions. They must 
follow guidelines and be open to inspection by BCC safety officers.  

 There is a proposal to improve the access and ground stability of the water tower 
site. This is a conservation area with archaeology issues. A permanent structure 
would need statutory approval and go through the planning process. It is not feasible 
to deliver a permanent solution for this year so a temporary surface will have to be 
employed in the short term. JJ is taking this forward with BCC planning. 

 The importance of keeping local residents informed on the events programme was 
discussed. 

3. Finance Update

Page 10

Agenda Item 6



 Covid restrictions are badly affecting Downs income, including events, business rates 
and agreements with the zoo and football league. 

 It is not clear where the decision to reduce zoo parking rates was taken. OH and KJ to 
investigate. 

 There was a discussion on Downs finance more generally and its relation to BCC. 
Although BCC is ultimately responsible for financing the Downs, any excess 
expenditure has a knock-on effect on other parts of the city. The Downs Committee 
will try to generate as much income as possible and it is important for members and 
BCC officers to work together. 

 The Downs has experienced serious financial losses due to Covid. It is worth 
investigating whether there are any support packages that may apply. JJ to take 
forward. 

 The general state of the Downs at the moment is poor. It is currently a critical space 
for the public during lockdown. High volume foot traffic has led to high levels of 
erosion and churn. There is an estimated 75% increase in people using the Downs. 
Circular road has two collapsed roadside drains causing flooding and damaging the 
footpath. Van dwellers are putting their vehicles on the grass verge which is causing 
damage. The cost of maintaining the Downs will be higher than normal because of 
this.

4. Downs Café Legal Position

 The Café will have to go through the BCC decision making process, which will also 
require external legal advice. The sub-committee received initial advice from four 
firms and approved spend for further advice related to the café construction, north 
car park and changing rooms. 

 Members discussed possible options for funding the café build given the significant 
pressure on reserves this year. 

5. Any Other Business

 A proposal to use crowdfunding to improve conditions at the play park near Clifton 
Suspension Bridge was approved in principle.  A fully costed proposal is needed 
before final agreement can be given.

Page 11



REPORT OF THE DOWNS MAINTENANCE MANAGER

January 2021, Lockdown 3

We never really considered within Parks that a time or an event would come around whereby, at 
least in a city setting,  parks and open spaces would suddenly become the only place that you could 
go to be outside, to exercise, or to see anyone socially ( 1 person at 2m ! ).

The effects of the three lockdown periods in the last 11/12 months are evidenced all over the 
Downs. The amount of trampling/wear and erosion to the ground has gone from being only in a few 
key places and at certain times of year, to being in all parts of the Downs throughout the year. 
Unfortunately this includes some areas that have a nature conservation value like our wildflower 
meadows and SSSI clifftop areas within the Goat enclosure.

The crowds of people and increased footfall has created huge amounts of work for the team 
throughout the year. If the Downs did not benefit from a dedicated team based on the Downs itself I 
am sure it would not have been possible to keep up with all the clearing up that has been required 
on a daily basis. 

Whilst recognising that it has been hugely important for us to be providing a safe and welcoming 
opportunity for people to get some space and freedom in these times, the associated negative 
impacts of all these people being here will have to be assessed and dealt with at a time in the future 
when things calm down and we can return to a more normal level of visitation and usage. 

So for now the team are focusing on a pared down schedule of daily duties. Mainly dealing with 
litter, emptying bins, dealing with site H&S issues and continuing daily goat monitoring. We are also 
continuing managing scrub compartments with the management plan. This will continue up until 
February 28th, after which it is bird nesting season.  Between now and the spring a proportion of our 
benches will be jet washed off and re wood stained. 

Obviously both types of football have ceased once more. The extent to which it will be possible to 
restart the season is unknown at this point.

Discussions around what is possible in terms of events at the Downs in 21 are ongoing and I am part 
of those discussions. Clear answers are in short supply right now so I will make sure that we carry 
out work to the ground at the event sites to be ready for all eventualities. There are going to be 
some spends associated with this, soil and grass seed purchase for example, which I will 
communicate at the finance and event sub group. 

One thing that is still going ahead due to the safety monitoring aspect is the annual cutting back of 
vegetation on the rock slopes above Bridge Valley Rd. This allows for annual rock safety inspections 
to take place. I have road closures in place for 3 consecutive Sundays coming up, where my team will 
carry out this work alongside engineering geologists from WSP. 

Sunday January 31st

Sunday February 7th 

Sunday February 14th

Page 12

Agenda Item 8



Growth & Regeneration Finance

The Downs

Outturn Forecast 2020/21

The latest full year outturn forecast for 2020/21 is as follows:

2020-21 Overall Income and Expenditure Summary

 Full Year 
Budget

Forecast 
Outturn

(as at 30.11.20)
Variance 

£ £ £

 

Income     

Total Income 350,260 195,989 (154,271) Deficit

Expenditure     

Total Expenditure (350,260) (571,338) (221,078) Overspend

FINAL NET OUTTURN 0 (375,349) (375,349) Representing Downs generated net 
surplus/(deficit)

Based on current information, there is a significant forecast deficit for 2020-21.  This is subject to change but 
is due to the Coronavirus pandemic causing uncertainty within the events and hospitality sector and an 
estimate of potential legal costs associated with the defence of a Judicial Review.  The deficit will be met from 
prior year underspends.

Page 13

Agenda Item 10



Request to create 3 wildflower beds on Christchurch Green

There have been requests to introduce more wildflower areas in Christchurch Green to attract more 
insects and wildlife to the area.

Proposed locations

Proposal

To create 3 native wildflower areas, using a flower-only seed mix of native seed appropriate to the 
geology/soil of this location.  The seed mix used would not present any risk to nearby natural 
habitats.

The wildflower areas would be created by the Downs team, using Parks equipment.  Management 
would consist of an annual ‘cut and collect’ at the end of summer.  This could either be carried out 
by the Downs team, or the cutting could be carried out by volunteers using scythes.  If it is done by 
volunteers, they would be led/supervised by either a member of staff, or by a volunteer who has 
carried out the Parks Health and Safety training.  This ensures the relevant health and safety 
precautions are taken, and that risk assessments are carried out.  Parks can provide scythe training 
to any individuals interested in regularly helping with this management.  Under this arrangement, 
which is in place across Bristol Parks, the volunteers would be covered by the council’s personal 
accident cover in the same way that staff are.

Page 14

Agenda Item 11



Temporary laminated signs will be put up when the wildflower beds are created to explain what they 
are.

Costs

 The cost of the seed is £323
 Preparing the ground and sowing the seed will cost £190
 Maintaining the wildflower areas will involve less staff time than the current cutting regime 

for these areas (either with or without volunteers), so there will not be any additional cost 
for maintaining them.

Total cost of the beds = £513

Funding

The Clifton Garden Society are happy to sponsor this initiative and have given permission for £500 to 
be “used as needed” for the wildflower beds. We would like to provide a permanent information 
board but we have yet to find funding for this.

Page 15


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of last meeting
	5 Action Tracker
	6 Events and Finance Sub-Group Summary
	8 Downs Management Report (Ben Skuse)
	10 Finance Update (Kevin Jay)
	11 Wildflower Beds on Christchurch Green

